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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
SOUTHERN DISTRICT OF FLORIDA

CASENO.

PODHURST ORSECK, P.A.

PlaintifT,
vs.
JEFFREY EPSTEIN,

Defendant.

{
COMPLAINT

Plaintiff, Podhurst Orseck, P.A., sues Defendant, Jeffrey Epstein, for attorney’s fees and
costs incurred in the representation of over a dozen minor women sexually abused and exploited
by Defendant, and for which Defendant expres:;ly agreed 1:0 pay pursuant to a Non-Prosecution
Agreement that he entered into with the United States Attorney’s Office for the Southern District
of Florida. Plaintiff further alleges:

GATIO NING INTS
Jurisdiction

1. Plaintiff, Podhurst Orseck, P.A. (“Podhurst firm” or *Plaintiff”) is a law firm
organized and operating as a professional association under the laws of the State of Florida with
offices in Miami-Dade County, Florida. For over four decades, the Podhurst firm has
concentrated its practice exclusively in trial and appellate litigation in both federal and state
court.

2. Defendant, Jeffrey Epstein (“Epstein™ or “Defendant™), is fifty-seven years old
and is a convicted sexual offender who is a citizen of the Territory of the United States Virgin

Istands, where he owns a residence on his own private 70-acre island called “Little St. James.”
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3. This Court has diversity jurisdiction pursuant to 28 U.S.C. § 1332(aj(1) because
the parties are from different states, and federal question jurisdiction pursuant to 28 U.S.C. §
1331 because the claims brought are founded on federal common law and implicate a unique
federal interest, for they relate to a Non-Prosecution Agreement entered into by the United States
of America, through the United States Attorney’s Office for the Southern District of Florida
(“USAO™).

Venue

4, Defendant currently can be found in Palm Beach, Palm Beach County, Florida, at
his mansion located at 358 El Brillo Way, valued at $6.8 million. Unrtil June 2008, he
maintained his principal place of residence in the largest dwelling in Manhattan, a 51,000-
square-foot eight-story mansion on the Upper East Side. Defendant also owns a $30 million,
7.500 —acre ranch in New Mexico. In addition to these properties and the Island of Little St.
James, and upon information and belief, Defendant is believed 1o own, or has owned, either
direetly or indirectly, various residences, including an apartment on the prestigious Avenue Foch
in Paris. France; a Boeing 727, a Guifstream jet, and a helicopter; and a fleet of luxury
automobiles, including a Ferrari 575 M.

5. Defendant currently remains in Florida subject to community control while
completing a sentence pursuant to a plea of guilty to two felony counts - - Solicitation of
Prostitution and Procuring Person Under 18 for Prostitution - - entered in state court in Palm
Beach County on June 30, 2008. As one of several conditions of his sentence, Defendant was

designated as a Sexual Offender pursuant to Florida law.
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6. Plamtiff"s third-party claims are derived from a Non-Prosecution Agreement
between the United States of America, through the USAQ and Defendant, which was executed
on or about October 30, 2007 and consists of an initial agreement (“Agreement”) and an
Addendum (“Addendum™), which, collectively, are referred to as the Non-Prosecution
Agreement (“NPA™), attached hereto as Composite Exhibit A.

7.  Defendant and one of his several attorneys signed the Agreement in New York on
September 24, 2007 and the Addendum on September 29, 2007. Upon information and belief,
another counsel for Epstein executed the Agreement on September 24, 2007 and the Addendum
on October 29, 2007 while in California or Miami. The Assistant United States Attorney who
investigated Defendant signed the NPA on September 27, 2007 in West Palm Beach, Florida on
behalf of the USAQ, whose main office was in Miami, Dade-County, Florida. The last person to
sign the agreement was the Chief Assistant United States Attorney, who signed the Addendum
for the USAO in Miami on October 30, 2007."

The Non-Prosecution Agreement

8. The NPA provided that the USAO and the Federal Bureau of Investigation (“FBI”)
had investigated Defendant for sexually related federal crimes involving minor females,
including, but not limited to, the following:

(1) knowingly and willfully conspiring with others known and unknown to
commit an offense against the United States, that is, to use a facility or
mezans of interstate or foreign commerce to knowingly persuade, induce,
or entice minor females to engage in prostitution, in violation of Title 18,
United States Code, Section 2422(b); all in violation of Title 18, United
States Code, Section 371;

" On December 7, 2007, Epstein signed a one-sentence Affirmation of the NPA and
Addendum, which he acknowledged were dated October 30, 2007.

3
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(2)  knowingly and willfully conspiring with others known and unknown to
travel in interstate commerce for the purpose of engaging in illicit sexual
conduct, as defined in 18 U.S.C. § 2423(f), with minor females in
violation of Title 18, United States Code, Section 2423(b}; all in violation
of Title 18, United States Code Section 2423(e);

(3}  using a facility or means of interstate or forcign commerce to knowingly
persuade, induce, or entice minor females to engage in prostitution; in
violation of Title 18, United States Code, Sections 2422(b) and 2;

{4y traveling in intersiate commerce for the purpose of engaging in illicit
sexual conduct, as defined in 18 U.S.C. § 2423(f), with minor females; in
violation of Title 18, United States Code, Section 2423(b); and

(5)  knowingly, in and affecting interstate and foreign commerce, recruiting,
enticing, and obtaining by any means a person, knowing that the person
had not attained the age of 18 years and would be caused to engage in a
commercial sex act as defined in 18 U.S.C. § 1591(c)(1); in violation of
Title 18, United States Code, Sections 1591(a)(1) and 2.

9.  The NPA further provided that federal prosecution for these crimes would be
deferred in favor of prosecution by state authorities, provided that Defendant abided by all of the
tertns and conditions set forth in the NPA.

10.  Among the terms to which Epstein expressly agreed was the appointment of an
atforney representative to represent the young women he victimized as minors by his illieit,
sexual conduct.

1. Epstein not only agreed to the appointment of the attomney representative, but
agreed to pay for any fees and costs that the attorney representative incurred before, during, and
through settlement of the various cases. More specifically, Epstein agreed to the following:

7. The United States shall provide Epstein’s attorneys with a
list of individuals whom it has identified as victims, as
defined in 18 U.S.C. § 2255, after Epstein has signed this
agreement and been sentenced. Upon the execufion of this
agreement, the United States, in consultation with and
subject to the good faith approval of Epstein’s counsel,
shall select an attorney representative for these persons,

who shall be paid for by Epstein. Epstein’s counsel may
4
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TA.

TC.

contact the identified individuals through that
representative.

The United States has the right to assign to an independent
third-party the responsibility for consuling with and,
subject to the good faith approval of Epstein’s counsel,
selecting the attorney representative for the individuals
identified under the Agreement. If the Unifed States elects
to assign this responsibility to an independent third-party,
both the United States and Epstein retain the right ro
make good faith objections to the attorney representative
suggested by the independent third-party prior to the final
designation of the aftorney representative.

Pursuant to additional paragraph7A, Epstein has agreed
to pay the fees of the attorney representative selected by
the independent third party. This provision, however,
shall not obligate Epstein to pay the fees and costs of
contested litigation filed against him. Thus, if after
consideration of potential settlements, an attorney
representative elects to file a contested lawswit pursuant to
18 U.S.C. § 2255 or elects to pursue any other contested
remedy, the paragraph 7 obligation of the Agreement to pay
the costs of the attornev representative, as opposed to any
statutory or other obligations to pay reasonable attorneys
fees and costs such as those contained in § 2255 to bear the
costs of the attorney representative, shall cease.

If any of the individuals referred to in paragraph (7), supra,
elects to file suit pursuant to 18 U.S.C. § 2255, Epstein will
not contest the jurisdiction of the United States District
Court for the Southern District of Florida over his person
and/or the subject matter, and Epstein waives his right to
contest liability and also waives his right to contest
damages up to and an amount as agreed to between the
identified individuals and Epstein, so long as the identified
individuals elect to proceed exclusively under 18 U5 C. §
2255, and agrees to waive any other claim for damages,
whether pursuant to state, federal, or common law.
Notwithstanding this waiver, as to those individuals whose
names appear on the list provided by the United States,
Epstein’s signature on this agreement, his waivers and
failures to contest liability and such damages in any suit are
not 1o be construed as an admission of any criminal or civil
liability.

Entered on FLSD Docket 05/17/2010 Page 5 of 17
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12.  According to the NPA, Epstein’s failure to pay the fees and costs of the attorney
representative would constitute a material breach of the NPA because, by “signing this
agreement, Epstein assert{ed] and certifie[d] that each of [the NPA's| terms is material to this
agreement and is supported by independent consideration and that a breach of any one of these
conditions allows the United States to elect to terminate the [NPA] and to investigate and
prosecute Epstein and any other individual or entity for any and all federal offenses.”

13.  The attorney representative who was to counsel, advise, and represent the young
women who, as minors, were victimized by Defendant’s illicit, sexual conduct was to be chosen
by a Special Master, The Honorable Edward B, Davis, former Chief Judge of the United States
District Court for the Southern District of Florida, whose office was in Miami, Florida. The
Special Master was instructed by the USAO to identify a lawyer with extraordinary experience
and abilities. Specifically, in selecting the attorney representative, the USAO instructed the
Special Master that, “[d]ue to the circumstances of the case and the number and caliber of the
attorneys who represent Mr. Epstein, in selecting the victims’ attorney representative, the United
States suggests that you consider the following criteria:”

1. Experience doing both plaintiffs’ and defense litigation.
2. Experience with state and federal statutory and common Jaw tort claims.
3. The ability to communicate effectively with young women.

4 Experience litigating against large law firms and high profile attorneys
‘who may test the veracity of the victims' claims.

5. Sensitivity to the nature of the suit and the victims” interest in maintaining
their privacy.
6. Experience litigating in federal court in the Southern District of Florida.
6
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7. The resources fo hire experts and others, while working on a contingency
fee basis, in order to prepare for trial, if a settlement cannot be reached
(defense counsel has reserved the right to challenge such litigation).
8. The ability to negotiate effectively.
Letter dated October 25, 2007, from First Assistant United States Attorney to the Honorable
Edward B. Davis (Rer.), antached hereto as Exhibit B.

14.  The attorney representative recommended by the Special Master and agreed to by
the USAQ and Epstein was Robert C. Josefsberg, Esq., a partner in the Podhurst firm. A
graduate of Darmouth College and Yale Law School, Mr. Josefsberg is one of Florida’s premier
trinl lawyers. For years he has been listed in the Best Lawyers in America as both a business
litigator and a criminal defense lawyer, and, since 20003, has been listed in Chambers & Partners
as one of the top four commercial litigators in Florida. Mr. Josefsberg is a past President and
Dean of the Interational Academy of Trial lawyers, a fellow of the American College of Trial
Lawyers, and a Member of the American Board of Trial Advocates. Throughout his career, Mr.
Josefsherg has received numerous awards, including the David Dyer Professionalism Award and
the Tobias Simon Pro Bono Award, which is “presented annually by the Chief Justice [of the
Flotida Supreme Court] to the attorney who best exemplifies the highest ideals of the profession
in assuring the availability of legal services to the poor.”

15.  Mr. Josefsberg devoted his time and effort as the attomey representative for those
victims of Defendant who chose to avail themselves of his services according to the terms
provided in the NPA. The attorney representative began his work relying upon the obligation of
Defendant to pay his fees and costs, as well as the representation of Defendant’s counsel that the

attorney representative would be paid his “usual and customary hourly rates™ for his work.
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Letter dated September 2, 2008 from Epsteim’s counsel to Assistant United States Attorney,
attached hereto as Exhibit C.

16.  Throughout the defense of the claims that were made by the young women being
represented by the attorney representative, as well as the settlement of those claims, Epstein was
represented by a large number of nationally and locally recognized lawyers, including, but not
limited to, Kenneth Starr, Esq. and Jay Lefkowitz, Esq. of Kirkland & Ellis LLP, a global law
firm with approximately 1,500 lawyers; Alan Dershowitz, the renowned Harvard Law Professor
who has been calied the “top lawyer of last resort in the country;” Roy Black, Esq., recognized as
one of the country’s premier trial lawyers; Martin G. Weinberg, Esq., one of the country’s most
prominent criminal defense lawyers; Jack A. Goldberger, Esq., a prominent Palm Beach lawyer;
and Robert D. Critton, Jr., Esq. and Michael Burman, Esq. of the firm Burman, Critton Luttier &
Coleman, LLP, a prominent Palm Beach law firm.

17.  Because of the number and caliber of lawyers representing Epstein, as well as the
number of women being represented and the ;muere psvchological injuries that these young
women had sustained as victims of Epstein, the attorney representative recognized early on that
he would need additional support from both inside and outside the Podhurst firm. This
additional support was critical to ensure that these women were thoroughly and adequately
represented. Accordingly, the attorney representative, Mr. Josefsberg, sought and obtained the
assistance of his pariner, Katherine W. Ezell, other employees of the firm, and two independent
contractors, Amy Josefsberg Ederi, Esq. and Susan E. Bennett, Esq., who were chosen for their
respective skills and experience (collectively, the “team”). Epstein, either directly or through

one of his many lawvyers, was aware of the specific lawyers assisting the afforney representative.
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18,  As a result of, and in reliance upon, the representations of Defendant and his
attorneys, and pursuant to Defendant’s obligations in the NPA, Mr. Josefsberg and his team
undertook the legal representation of over a dozen of Defendant’s victims. all of whom were
among the thirty-three (33) females identified by the USAO as those upon whose testimony the
USAO was prepared to move forward in federally prosecuting Defendant.

19.  The representation of these young women who had been sexually abused and
exploited as minors by Epstein was arduous and difficult.

20.  The representation was arduous and difficult in large part because of the
psychological and physical damages these females had suffered, and continue to suffer, as a
result of Defendant’s sexual conduct. By way of example only, Defendant began sexually
abusing and exploiting one of his female victims when she was only fifteen (15) vears old. After
luring this fifleen-vear-old to his mansion and assaulting her with the assistance of one of the
several women who would procure minor females for Defendant’s pleasure, Defendant fured her
to his Palm Beach mansion every day for the next two weeks in order to engage in a similar
pattern of sexual abuse and exploitation.

21.  Defendant eventually “groomed” this adolescent minor and immersed her into his
lewd and sexually exploitive lifestyle. Specifically, Defendant’s daily routine required this minor
female to perform sexually on Defendant multiple times per day. This minor victim had
absolutely no say as to when, how many times, or what was done during each sexual encounter.

22.  In addition to being continually exploited to satisfy Defendant’s every sexual
whim, this adolescent was required to be sexually exploited by Defendant’s adult male peers,
including rovalty, peliticians, academicians, businessmen, and other professional and personal

acquaintances.
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23.  The other women whom Mr. Josefsberg and his team represented also suffered
sexual abuse and exploitation as minor victims of Defendant.

24.  Throughout the representation, Mr. Josefsberg and his team met with, advised,
and counseled these sexually abused and exploited young women on their potential claims
against Defendant, as well as the prospects of settlement.

25.  The representation of these young women by Mr. Josefsberg and his team
included, but was not limited to:

a. meeting with and receiving training and information from experts
in child sex abuse in order to be able to recognize perpetrators’
patterns and effects on the lives of young female victims;

e conducting a nation-wide search for the most qualified,
appropriate, and effective experts to evaluate clients with injuries
of this type, including research and initial requests for proposals

from numerous psychologists as candidates;

s reviewing qualifications, consulting with peers, and talking to and
corresponding with candidates;

¢ conducting interviews in person with the final candidates;

e working with selected psychological experts to understand and
assess the damages suffered by the young women;

* negotiating and formulating the evaluation procedure; and

s coordinating the arrangements to enable the chosen experts to
eonduct testing, interviews, and evaluations of each client;

b. interviewing the young women at length to assess their background,
the conduct to which they had been subjected, and the physical and
psychological damage they had suffered as a result of Defendant’s
conduet;

c. interviewing collateral witnesses, including parents, siblings,
husbands, and others relating to each of the young women as a
means of assessing the injuries they had sustained:

10
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d. researching the damages and other remedies available under 18
U.S.C.§ 2255, a seldom used federal statute under which the young
women were proceeding pursuant to the NPA;

E. rescarching 18 U.S.C. § 2255, which was amended in 2006, in
order 10 assess the applicable version of the statute;

f. researching the predicate offenses upon which claims under § 2255
could be established;

g determining the implication of the statutes of limitations on each
YOUNg Womarn's case;

h. investigating and assessing the background, history, and ongoing
status of Defendant:

i reviewing and examining the records of the voung women,
including, but not limited to, medical, educational, and mental
health;

i in some instances where the clients had joumals, photographs,
and/or scrap books, reviewing those materials;

k. researching and briefing certain critical issues and negotiating
agreements pertaining thereto, only to have to resort to court
intervention, including, but not limited to, location and
preservation of evidence and the need and practical application of a
No-Contact Order to protect clients from harassment and
mtimidation,

1. engaging in extensive and protracted settlement negotiations with
Defendant and his multitude of lawyers;

m. often drafting from Defendant’s specifications, the results of which
when presented, were rejected in favor of substantive changes
never before discussed.

26. In spite of Defendant’s non-compliance throughout this process, after extensive,

lengthy, and protracted negotiations with Defendant and several of his attorneys, settlements

have been finalized and executed in many of the cases handled by the attorney representative.

11
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27. During those extensive, lengthy, and protracted settlement negotiations, Defendant
took positions that, at best, were unreasonable, and, at worst, exemplified his continuing bad
faith.

28.  Extensive and lengthy discussions similarly ensued when it became clear that
Defendant did not intend to abide by the NPA by promptly paying the fees and costs of the
Podhurst firm, Mr. Josefsberg, and his team for their representation of the young women who, as
minors, were sexually abused and exploited by Defendant. Intense and frustrating negotiations
regarding Defendant’s obligation to pay were conducied between the Podhurst firm and
Defendant’s multitude of lawyers over the course of more than twenty (20) months of
representation.

29. The representation and legal work done by Mr. Josefsberg, the attorney
representative, and his team on behalf of the young women who, as minors, ;uere sexually
abused and exploited by Defendant has generated, and continues to generate, significant
attorney’s fees and costs that Defendant expressly agreed to pay pursuant to the NPA.

30, For the extensive legal work done on behalf of these young women through
settlement by Mr. Josefsberg and his team, the Podhurst firm is currently owed a total of more
than Two Million Dollars ($2,000,000) in fees and costs, with additional fees and costs being
incurred and billed to Defendant in the future.

31. Defendant’s failure to pay the fees and costs of the attorney representative and the
Podhurst firm is a material breach of his obligations under the NPA and has totaily thwarted and
frustrated the intent and purpose of having the attorney representative and his team represent the

many young women who, as minors, were sexually abused and exploited by Defendant.

12
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32.  Epstein’s failure to pay the attorney’s fees and costs he expressly agreed to pay the
attorney representative is not his only material breach of the NPA. Despite his agreement and
promise in the NPA to waive his right to contest liability in any suit brought pursuant to 18
U.S.C. § 2255, Epstein has breached this obligation by contesting liability in the cases against
him by the voung women who, as minors, he sexually abused and exploited. On at least one
occasion, the USAQ placed Defendant on notice that he was in breach of the NPA.

33. It has become abundantly clear that Epstein, having obtained the benefits of the
NPA and having escaped federal criminal prosecution, now believes that he can simply ignore—
without consequence—ihe obligations imposed under the NPA. Put simply, Epstein believes he
is above the law.

COUNT I
B F THIRD PARTY AGRE

34.  Plaintiff realleges paragraphs 1 through 33 as though they were fully set forth
herein.

35. The NPA is an enforceable agreement between the Defendant and the United
States, both of whom entered into the NPA with the intent of benefiting certain third parties.

36. The NPA specifically and clearly intended 1o benefit the Podhurst firm, in that the
attorney representative, a Podhurst partner who is compensated by the firm, was to be paid for
his services at his regular customary hourly rate by Epstein.

37. The atiorney representative, certain other members and employees of the Podhurst
firm, and the independent lawyers and experts they hired to assist them in the representation of
the young women who, as minors, were abused and exploited by Defendant, generated fees at

their usual hourly rates, as well as expenses and costs.

-~
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38. Despite Defendant’s express agreement and obligation under the NPA to pay for
the fees and costs incurred by the attorney representative in connection with the representation of
the many minor females who Defendant sexually abused and exploited, Defendant has paid only
a small portion of the fees and costs incurred, and has failed—despite numerous meetings and
repeated requests—to pay the remainder of the owstanding fees and costs due the attorney
representative and the Podhurst firm.

39. Defendant’s failure to pay the attorney representative and his team the attorney’s
fees and costs incurred is a clear and material breach of Defendant’s obligation under the NPA.

40.  Such material breach of the NPA has caused substantial damages to the Podhurst
firm. the attorney representative, and the independent lawyers who were intended beneficiaries
under the NPA.,

WHEREFORE, as a result of Defendant’s breach of the NPA and the resulting damages
to its intended third party beneficiary, Plaintiff seeks damages in excess of Two Million Dollars
($2,000,000), represeniing the attorney’s fees and costs incurred by the Podhurst firm and the
attorney representative on behalf of Defendant’s victims, along with the reasonable fees and
cosls associated with their efforts herein to make themselves whole, including, but not limited to,
attorney’s fees and costs pursuant to Florida Statutes, pre-judgment and posi-judgment interest,
and any other relief this Court deems just and proper.

COUNT 1L
BREACH OF COVENANT OF GOOD FAITH AND FAIR DEALING

41.  Plaintiff realleges paragraphs 1 through 33 as though fully set forth herein.

42, The NPA is an enforceable agreement between Defendant and the United States.

Defendant and the United States entered into the NPA with the clear and expressed intent to

14
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benefit certain third parties, including the attorney representative, Mr. Josefsberg, and the
Podhurst firm.

43,  The NPA contains an implied covenant of good faith and fair dealing.

44, TUnder the NPA, Defendant expressly agreed and was obligated to pay the fees and
costs of the altomey representative, a partner at the Podhurst firm, before, during, and through
any settlement of each case that he and the Podhurst firm were handling on behalf of the victims
whom Defendant sexually abused and exploited.

45.  Specifically, the NPA expressly provides that, “[ujpon the execution of this
agreement, the United States, in consultation with and subject to the good faith approval of
Epstein’s counsel, shall select an attorney representative for these persons, who shall be paid for
by Epstein.”

46. The NPA further provides that “Epstein has agreed to pay the fees of the attomey
representative.”

47.  Defendant breached the implied covenant of good faith and fair dealing contained
in the NPA, as well as in those provisions in which Defendant agreed to pay the fees and costs of
the attorney representative, by, among other things,

(@)  repeatedly delaying the payment of the fees and costs incurred through
settlement by the attorney representative and his team;

(b}  despite suggesting that a Special Master be selected to setile the issue of
fees and costs incurred by the attomey representative, initially denying the existence of the
parties’ agreement to do so, and delaying the selection of such Special Master by making
numerous, unreasonable, and often swrreptitious changes to the proposed Special Master
agreement; and

15
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(c)  causing the attorney representative and the Podhurst firm to incur
additional fees and costs by not responding to requests in a timely fashion, or at all; by taking
unreasonable positions, including contesting liability of a § 2255 claim; and by reaching
agreement on various issues and then reneging on the agreements reached, all the while
contending that the fees and costs incurred by the attorney representative and his team were
excessive and unreasonable.

48%. By his actions, Defendant has acted in bad faith, unfairly, unconscionably, and
malicionsly toward the attorney representative and his team, who were clearly intended
beneficiaries under the NPA, and has caused the Piu.in.tiﬁdamagt:s.

WHEREFORE, as a result of Defendant’s unreasonable and unconscionable actions,
which constitute a breach of the implied covenant of good faith and fair dealing in the NPA,
Plaintiff secks damages in execess of Two Million Dollars ($2,000,000), representing the

attorney’s fees and costs incurred by the Podhurst firm on behalf of Defendant’s victims through
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settlement and pursuant to the NPA, along with the reasonable fees and costs associated with its

efforts herein to make itself whole, attorneys fees and costs pursuant to Florida Statutes, pre-

judgment and post-judgment interest, and any other relief this Court deems just and proper.

DATED this 17" day of May, 2010.

By:

Respectfully submitted,

PODHURST ORSECK, P.A.
Attornevs for Plaintff’

City National Bank Building
25 W, Flagler Sireet, Suite 800
Miami, FL 33130

Telephone: (305) 358-2800
Facsimile: (305) 358-2382

_/s/ Peter Prieto

Steven C. Marks (FBN 516414)
smarks@podhurst.com

Peter Prieto (FBN 501492)
porieto@@podhurst. com

John Gravante, [T (FBN 617113)
jeravante@@podburst.com
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COMPOSITE EXHIBIT A

NON-PROSECUTION AGREEMENT AND
ADDENDUM
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IN RE:

INVESTIGATION OF
JEFFREY EPSTEIN

f

NON-PROSECUTION AGREEMENT

T APPEARING that the City of Palm Beach Police Department and the State
Attorney's Office for the 15th Judicial Circuit in and for Palm Beach County (bereinafier,
the “State Aftorney’s Office™) have conducted en investigation into the conduct of Jeffrey
Epstein (hersinafter “Epstein™),

IT APPEARING that the State Attomney’s Office has charged Epstein by indictment
with solicitation of prostitution, in violetion of Florida Statuies Section 796.07;

T APPEARING that the United States Attorney's Office end the Federal Burcaw of
Investigation heve conducted their own lnvestigation into Epstein's background end any
offsnses that may have been commitied by Epstein sgainst the United States from in or
arcrmd 2001 through in or around September 2007, including:

(1

@

(3}

4

kpowingly and willfully conspiring with others known and unknownto
commit en offcnss against the United States, that is, to use a facility or means
of interstate or foreign commerce 10 knowingly persuade, induce, or entice
minor females to engage in prostitution, in violation of Tite 18, United States
Code, Section 2422(b); 2ll in viclation of Title 18, United States Code, Section
L

knowingly and willfully conspiring with others kaown and unknown 1o travel
in interstate commerce for the purpose of engaging in illicit sexual conduct, es
defined in 18 U.S.C. § 2423(f), with minor females, in viclation of Title I8,
United States Code, Section 2423(b); all in viclation of Title 18, United States
Code, Section 2423(e);

using & facility or means of interstate or forsign commerce to knowingly
persuade, induce, or entice minor females fto engege in prostitution; in
vicletion of Title 18, United Stares Code, Sections 2422(b) end 2;

traveling in interstate commerce for the purpose of engaging in illicit sexual
conduct, as defined in 18 U.5.C. § 2423(f), with minor females; in violstion

Page | of 7
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of Title 18, United States Code, Section 2423(k); and

(5}  knmowingly, in and affecting interstate and forsign commerce, recruiting,
enticing, and obtaining by any means 2 person, knowing that the person hed
not attained the age of 18 years and would be caused to engage in &
commercial sex act as defined in 18 US.C. § 1591(c)(1); in viclation of Title
18, United States Code, Sections 1591(2)(1) and 2; and

IT APPEARING that Epstein seeks to resolve globally his state end faderal criminal
liability and Epstein understands and scknowledges that, in exchange for the benzfits
provided by thisagreement, he agrees to comply with its terms, including undertaking certein
actinng with the State Attarney'’s Office;

IT APPEARING, afier an investigation of the offenses and Epstein's background by
both State and Federal law enforcement agencies, and after due consultstion with the State
Attorney's Office, that the interests of the United States, the State of Florida, and the
Drefendant will be served by the following procedure;

THEREFORE, on the authority of R. Alexander Acosta, United States Attomey for
the Southern District of Florida, prosecution in this District for these offenses ghal] be
deferred in favor of prosecution by the State of Florida, provided that Epstein abides by the
fellowing conditions and the requirements of this Agreement set forth below,

If the United Stetes Attormey should determine, besed on relisble evidence, that,
during the period of the Agreement, Epstein willfully violated any of the conditions of this
Agreement, then the United Siates Attomey may, within ninety (90) days following the
expiration of the term of home confinement discussed below, provide Epstein with timely
notice specifying the condition(s) of the Agreement that be has violated, and shall initiate its
prosecution on any offense within sixty (60) days’ of giving notice of the violation. Any
notice provided to Epstein pursuant to this paragraph sha!l be provided within 60 deys of the
United States learning of facts which may provide a basis for & determination of 8 breach of
the Agreement.

After timely fulfilling all the terms and conditions of the Agreement, no prosecution
for the offenses set out on pages | and 2 of this Agreement, nor sny other offenses that have
been the subject of the joint investigation by the Federal Bureau of Investigation end the
United States Attorney's Office, nor any offenses that arose from the Federal Grand Jury
investigation will be instituted in this District, and the charges against Epatein if any, will be
dismissed.
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Terms of the Agreoment:

Epstein shall plead guilty (not nolo contendere) to the Indictment as
currently pending egainst him in the 15th Judicial Circuit in and for
Palm Beach County (Case No. 2006-cf-009453A0CXMB) charging
one (1} coumt of solicitation of prostitution, in viclation of F1. Stat, §
796.07. In addition, Epstein shall plead guilty to an Information filed
by the Stte Atiomey's Office charging Epstein with an offense that
requires him to register as a sex offender, that is, the soliciation of
minors to engage in prostitution, in violation of Floride Statutes Section
796.03;

Epstein shall make a binding recommendztion that the Court imposc a
thirty (30) menth sentence 1o be divided es follows:

(2)  Epstein shall be sentenced to consecutive terms of twelve (12)
months and six (6) months in county jail [or ell charges, without
any opportunity for withholding adjudication or sentencing, end
without probation or commumity contrel in lew of

(b)  Epstein shall be sentenced to a term of twelve (12) months of

control consecutive 1o his two tarms in sounty jail
as described in Term 2(2), supra.

This agreement is contingent upon a Judge of the 1 5th Judicial Cireuit
accepting and executing the sentence agreed upon betwesn the State
Attomey's Office and Epstein, the details of which are set forth in this

agreement,

The terms contained in paragraphs | and 2, supra, do not foreclose
Epstein and the State Attorney's Office from agreeing to recommend
any additionel charge(s) or any edditional term(s) of probation and/or
incarceration.

Epstein shall waive ali challenges to the Informetion filed by the State
Atorney's Office and shall waive the right to appeal his conviction and
sentence, except & sentence that exceeds whet is set forth in parsgraph
(2), supra.

Epstsin shall provide to the U.S. Attorney's Office copies ofail
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10.

1.

proposed agreements with the State Attorney's Office priorto entering
into those agresments.

The United States shell provide Epstein's attomeys with 2 listof
individuals whom it hes identified as victims, as defined in 18 US.C.
§ 2255, after Epstein has signed this agreement and been sentenced.
Upon the execution of this agreement, the United States, in consultation
with and subject to the good fuith approval of Epstein’s counsel, shall
select an attorney representative for these persons, who shall be paid for
by Epstein. Epstein’s counse] may contact the identified individuals
through that representative.

If any of the individuals referred to in paragraph (7), supra, clects o
file sult pursuant to 18 U.S.C. § 2255, Epsteln will not contest the
jurisdiction of the United States District Court for the Southern District
of Florida over his person end/or the subject matter, and Epstein waives
his right to contest liability and also waives his right to contest damages
up to &n emount gs sgreed to between the identified individua! and
Epstein, 50 long s the idemtified individual eletts to proceed
exclusively under 18 U.S.C. § 2255, and agrees to waive any other
claim for damages, whether pursuant to state, federal, or commeon Jaw.
Notwithstanding this waiver, es to those individuals whose names
appear an the list provided by the United States, Epstein’s signature on
this agreement, his waivers and failures to contest liability and such
damages in any suit are pot to be construed as &n admission of any
criminal or civil lizbility.

Epstein's signature on this agreement glso Is not 1o be construed 25 mn
admission of civil or criminel liability or & waiver of any jurisdictional
or other defense as to any person whose name does not appear on the
list provided by the United States.

Except as to thoss individuals who elect 1o proceed exclusively under
18 U.5.C, § 2255, as set forth in paragraph (8), supra, neither Epstein’s
signature on this sgreement, nor its terms, nor any resulting waivers or
setiements by Epstein are to be construed es sdmissions or evidence of
civil or eriminel liability or a waiver of any jurisdictional or other
defense as 1o any person, whether or not her name appears on the Ist
provided by the United States.

Epstein shall use his best efforts to enter his guilty plea and be
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senenced not later than October 26, 2007. The United States has no
objection to Epstein self-reporting to begin serving his seatence not
later than January 4, 2008.

12, Epstein agrees that he will not be afforded any benefits with respect to
gain time, other than the rights, opportunities, end benefits as any other
inmate, including but not limited to, eligibility for gain time credit
besed on stenderd rules end regulations that epply in the State of
Florida. At the United States’ reguest, Epstein egrees to provide en
accounting of the gain time he camed during his pericd of
incarceration.

13,  The parties anticipate that this agreement will not be made part of any
public record. Ifthe United States receives & Freedom of Information
Act request or any compulsory process commanding the disclosure of
the agreement, it will provide notice to Epstein before making that
dizclosure.

Epstein understands that the United States Attorney hes no authority to require the
State Attorney's Office to abide by moy terms of this agreement. Epstsin understands that
it is his obligaticn to undertake discussions with the State Attorney’s Office and to use his
best efforts to ensure compliance with these procedures, which compliance will be necessary
to satisfy the United States’ interest. Epstein also understands that it is his obligaticn to use
his best efforts to convines the Judge of'the 15th Judicial Circuit to accept Epstein’s binding
recommendation regarding the sentence to be imposed, and understands that the failure 1
do so will be a breach of the agreement.

in consideration of Epstein's agreement to plead guilty and to provide compensation
i the manner described ebove, if Epstein successfully fulfills ell of the terms end conditions
of this agreement, the United States also agrees that it will not institute eny criminal ﬁ:s

inst eny potential co-conspi luding but not limited to

I Further, upon exscution of i
agreement and 2 plea agresment with the State Attorney's Office, the federal Grand Jury
investigation will be suspended, and ell perding federe] Grand Jury subpoenes will be held
ir abeyance unless and until the defendant violates any term of this egreement. The
defendant likewise agrees to withdraw his pending metion to intervenc and 1o quash certain
grand jury subpoenas. Both parties egree to maintain their evidence, specifically evidence
requested by or directly related 1o the grand jury subpoenes that have been lssucd, and
including certain computer equipment, inviolate until ail of the terms of this egreement have
been satisfied. Upon the successful completion of the terms of this agreemeat, &ll
putstanding grand jury subpoenas shall be deemed withdrawn.
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By signing this agreement, Epstein asserts and certifies that each of these terms is
materiel to this egreement and is supported by independent consideration and that a breach
of any one of these conditions allows the United States to elect to terminate the sgreement
and to investigate and prosecuge Epstein and any other individual or entity for any and &l
federa! offenses,

By signing this agreement, Epstein asserts and certifies that he is aware of the fasct thet
the Sixth Amendment to the Constitution of the United States provides that in all criminel
prosecutions the sccused shall enjoy the right to 2 speedy and public trial, Epstein farther
is ware that Rule 48(h) of the Federa! Rules of Criminal Procedure provides that the Court
may dismiss an indictment, information, or complaint for unnecessary delay in presenting
a charge to the Grand Jury, filing an information, or in bringing a defendant 1o trial. Epstein
hereby requests that the United States Attorney fer the Southern District of Florida defer such
prosecution. Epstein agrees and consents that any deley from the date of this Agreement to
the date of initiation of prosecution, &s provided for in the terms expressed herein, shall be
deemed to be & necessary delay at his own request, and he hereby waives any defense to such
prosecution on the ground that such delay operated to deny him rights under Rule 48(b) of
the Federal Rules of Criminal Procedure and the Sixth Amendment to the Constitution of the
United States 1o & speedy trial or to bar the prosccution by reascn of the running of the statute
of limitations for a period of months equal to the peried between the signing of this
agreement and the breach of this agreement es to these offenses that were the subjsct of the
grand jury's investigation. Epstein further esserts and certifies that he understands that the
Fifih Amendment and Rule 7(g) of the Federal Rules of Criminal Procedure provide that el
felonies must be charged in an indictment presented to & grand jury. Epstein hereby agrees
and consents that, if & prosecution against him is instituted for any offense that was the
subject of the grand jury's investigation, it may be by way of an Information signed and filed
by the United States Attorney, and hereby waives his right 10 be indicted by & grand jury es
to any such offenss.
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By signing this agreement, Epstein asserts end certifics that the gbove has been read
and explained to him, Epstein hereby states that he understands the conditions of this Non-
Prosecution Agreement end agrees to comply with them.

Dated:

Dated: ?{ éz D?""
Dated: __

Dated:

R. ALEXANDER ACOSTA
UNITED STATES ATTORNEY

ASSISTANT U.S. ATTORNEY

ﬂ :

GERALD LEFCOURT, ESQ.
COUNSEL TO JEFFREY EPSTEIN

LILLY ANN SANCHEZ, ESQ.
ATTORNEY FOR JEFFREY EPSTEIN

7
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By signing this agrecment, Epstein assents end certifics thet the above has been read
end explained to him. Epstein hereby states that hes undsrstands the conditions of this Non-
Prosecation Agreement and agrees to comply with them,

B ALENANDER ACOSTA

UNITED STATES ATTORNEY
Dated: By

ASSISTANT U.5. ATTOENEY
Datsd:

JEFFREY EPSTEIN

Dated:

LILLY ANN SANCHEZ, ESQ.
ATTORNEY FOR JEFFREY EPSTEIN
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By signing this agreement, Epstein asserts and certifies that the sbove has beon read
and cxpmm Ep:uinharbymﬂmthnmdmdnbuandmmuﬂhmﬂm-
Prosecution Agreement and agress to comply with them.

Dated:

Dated:

Datet: G- A 4= 07

R ALEXNANDER ACOSTA
UNITED STATES ATTORNEY

Bw

ARRISTANT ULS. ATTORNEY

JEFFREY EPSTEIN

GERALD LEFCOURT, ESQ.
COUNSEL TO JEFFREY EPSTEIN

Al ESQ.
ATTORNEY FOR JEFFREY EPSTEIN
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IN RE:

INVESTIGATION OF

JEFFREY EPSTEIN

’

ADDENDUM TO THE NON-PROSECUTION AGREEMENT

IT APPEARING that the parties sock to larify certain provisions of page 4, paragraph 7

of the Non-Prosecution Agreement (hereinafter “paragraph 77), that agreement |s modified as
follows:

TA.

Tc.

The United States hes the right to assign to an independent third-party the responsibility
for consulting with and, subject to the good faith approval of Epstein's counsel, selecting
the attorney representative for the individuals ideatified under the Agreement. If the
United States slects to assign this responsibility to an independeat third-party, both the
United States and Epstein retain the right to make good faith objections to the sttomey
representative suggested by the independent third-party prior 1o the finz] desigration of
the atiorney representative.

The parties will jointly prepare & short written submission to the independent third-party
regarding the role of the attorney representstive and regarding Epstein's Agreement o
pay such attorney representative his or her reguler customary hourly rate for representing
such victims subject to the provisions of paragraph C, infra.

Pursuant to additional paragraph 7A, Epstein has agreed to pay the fees of the attorney
representative selected by the independent third party. This provision, however, shall not
obligate Epstein to pay the fees and costs of contested litigation filed sgainst him. Thus,
if after consideration of potential settlements, an aitorney representative elects o file s
contested lawsuit pursuant to 18 U.S.C. s 2255 or elects to pursue any other contested
remedy, the paragraph 7 obligation of the Agreement to pay the cosis of the aftorney
representative, as opposed to any sistutory of other obligations 1o pay reasonable
attorneys fiees and costs such as those contained in s 2253 1o bear the costs of the attorney
representative, shall cease.
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By signing this Addendum, Epstein asserts and certifies that the above has boen read and
explained to him. . Epstein horeby states that he understands the clarifications to the Non-

Prosecution Agreement and agress to comply with them.,

R ALEXANDER ACOSTA,
UNITED STATES ATTORNEY

Dated: {Qé b g_"’g'? By:
ASSISTANT U.S. ATTORNEY

—y "/ in : W
i

GERALD LEFCOURT, 55Q.
COUNSEL TO JEFFREY EPSTEIN

Dated:

Dated:

LILLY ANN BANCHEZ, ESQ.
ATTORNEY FOR JEFFREY EPSTEIN
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By signing this Addendum, Epstein asserts and certifies that the above hes been read and
cxplained to him. Epstein heroby states that he understands the clarifications to the Moo-
Prosecation Agreement end agrees to comply with them.

R. ALEXANDER. ACOSTA
UNITED STATES ATTORNEY

Dated: mlﬁﬂ/ﬂ? By:

ABSISTANT U8, ATTORNEY

Dated;

Dated:

LILLY ANN SANCHEZ, ESQ.
ATTORNEY FOR JEFFREY EPSTEIN
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By signing this Addendum, Epsiein ssserts and certifiss that the ebove hes been resd and
explained to him. Epstein hereby states that he understands the clerlfications to the Non-

Prosecution Agreement end egress to comply with them,

R. ALEXANDER ACOSTA

Diated: fﬂ/g ﬁ'/ﬂ 7
ASSISTANT U.S. ATTORNEY
Dated: _ _
— JEFFREY EPSTEIN
i
GERALD LEFCOURT, E5Q. ;
COUNSEL TO JEFFREY EPSTEIN !
I
) i
Dated: (29 (S 1~ a
LILLY NCHEZ, " |
ATTORNEY FOR JEFFREY EPSTEIN
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Aflirmation

1, Jeffrey E. Epstein do hareby ro-sffirm the Non-Proseantion Agreement end Addedum
pams dered October 30, 2007,

(A= bk
hﬁ'EFPCh/ Date
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EXHIBIT B
LETTER DATED OCTOBER 25, 2007 FROM

FIRST ASSISTANT UNITED STATES ATTORNEY TO
THE HONORABLE EDWARD B. DAVIS (Ret.)
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U.S. Department of Justice

United States Attorney
Southern Distriet of Flerida

59 N.E 4" Street
Miami, F133132
Telephone: (303) 961-5295
Facximile: (305) $30-6444

October 25, 2007

DELIVERY BY FACSIMILE

The Hoxn. BEdward B. Davis (Ret.)
Akerman Senterfitt

One Southeast Third Avezue, 25th Floor
Miami, Florida 33131

Re:  Service as a Special Master
Dear Judge Davis:

Thank you for agreeing to serve as 2 Special Master and for assisting the United States
Attomey’s Office in the selection of an attorney representetive 10 represent a group of
identified victims. This letter is meant to assist you in performing your duties by providing
you with background information regerding the egresment between the United States and
Jeffrey Epstein end the duties that the atiorney representative will have to perform.

The Federal Bureau of Investigation and the U.S. Attorney’s Office conducted an
investigation of Mr. Epstein. As aresult of thetinvestigation, the U.8. Attomney's Office and
Mr. Epstein entered into a Non-Prosecution Agreement and an Addendum hat contatns,
inter alia, the following terms:

7A. The United States has the right to assign to an independent third-party the
responsibility for consulting with end, subject to the good faith approval of
Epstein's counsel, selecting the atlomey representative for e individuals
identified wmder the Agreement. If the United States elects to assign this
responsibility to an independent third-party, both the United States and Epstein
retnin the right to meke good faith objections fo the attorney representative
suggested by the independent third-party prior to the final designaticn of the
gtiomney representative.
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THE How, EDWARD B, DAVIS (RET.)
OcToBER 25, 2007
PACEICF4

7B. The parties will jointly prepare a short written submission to the
independent third-party regarding tie role of the attorpey renresentative end
regarding Epstein’s Agreement to pay such attorney representative his or her
reguler customary howrly rate for representing such victims sudject to the
provisions of paragraph 7C, infra.

7C. Pursuant to additional paragraph 7A, Epstein has agread to pay the fees
of the attorney representative selected by the independent third party, This
provision, however, shall not obligate Epstein o pay the fees and costs of
contested litigation filed against him. Thus, if 2fter consideration of potential

_ seitlements, an attomney representative elects to file a contested lawsuit
pursuant to 18 U.S.C. § 2255 or elacts to pursue any other coniested remedy,
the paragraph 7 obligetion of the Agreement to pay the costs of the atiomey
representztive, as opposed to any statutory or other obligations to pay
reasonzhle attorneys fees and costs such as those contained in § 2235 to bear
the costs of the attorney representative, shall cease,

8 If any of the individnals referred to [in the paragraphs above] elects to £le
suit pursuant o 18 U.S.C. § 2255, Epstein will not contest the jurisdiction of
the United States District Court for the Southern District of Florida over his
person and/or the subject mafter, and Epstein waives his right to contest -
ligbility and also waives his right 1o contest demages up 1o an amount egreed
to between Epstem and the 1@nfisied indjvidhel, so long as the identified
individual elects to proceed exchusively under 18 U.S.C, § 2255, and agreesto
waive any other claim for damages, whether pursuant to state, federzl, or
common law. Notwithstanding this waiver, with respect to those individuals
whose names appear on the Hst provided by the United States, Epstein’s
signature on this agreement, his waivers and failures to contest liability and
such damages in any suit are not to be construed as an admission of any
criminal or civil Hability.

9 Epstein’s signature on this agreement also is not to be construed
admission of civil or criminal liability or 2 waiver of any jurisdictioral or
other defense as to any person whose name does not zppear on the list
provided by the United States.

10.Except &s to those individuals who elect to proceed exclusively under 18
U.S.C. § 2255, es set forth in [the above paragraphs], neither Epstein’s
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T3z HON, EDWARD B, DAVIS (RET,)
OCTDEER 25, 2007
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signature on this agreement, nor its terms, nor any resulting waivers or
settlements by Epstsin are o be construed as admissions cr evidence of
civil or criminal lizbikity or a waiver of any jurisdictional or other defense
as t0 any person, whether or not her name appears on the list provided by
the United States,

Ths most recent version of the stafute referenced zbove, 18 US.C. § 2255,
provides that

Any persen who, while a minor, was a victim ofa violation of section ... 2422
or 2423 of this title and who suffers personal injury as a result of such
violztion, regardless of whether the injury occurred while such person was a
minor, may sue in &ny eppropriate United States District Court and shall
recaver the actual damages such person sustaing and the cost of the sulf,
including a reasonable zttormey’s fee. Any person as described in the
preceding sextence shall be dsemed to have sustained damages of 1o less than
$150,000 in vahue

Section 2422 prohibits the use of a facility of interstate commerce to induce minors
1o engage in sexual activity and prostitution, and section 2423 prohibits interstate travel for
fhe purpose of engaging in sexual activity or prostitution with minors. The United States has
identified 34 victims as defined by this statute. The United States takss no position as to the
validity of any such claim under this statute.

Due to the ciroumstances of the case and the number and caliber of the attomeys who
represent Mr. Epstein, in selecting the victims' attomey representative, the United States
suggests that you consider the following eriteria:

1.  Experience doing both plaintiffs’ and defense Lifigation.

2. Experience with state and federal statutory and common law tort claims.

3, The ability to communicate efectively with young women.

4. Experience litigating against large law firms and high profile attormeys who

! An earlier version of this statuts desins that any perscn described in the preceding
sentence shall have sustained dameages of no less than $50,000 in value.
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Tz Hon. EDwARD B, DAVIS (RET.)
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may test the veracity of the victims’ claims.

5. Sensitivity to the nature of the suit and the victims’ inferest in maintaining
their privacy.

6. Experience litigating in federal court in the Southern District of Florida.

T The resources to hire experts and others, while working on a contingency
fee basis, in order to prepere for trial, if & settlement cannot be reached
(defense counsel has reserved the right to chellenge such litigation).

8. Tke ability to negotiats effectively.

Pursuant to this letter, the United States assigns to you the responsibility for consulting
with and selecting the attorney representative for the individuals, The United States and
Epstein retain the right tomake good faith objections o the atiomey representative you select
prior to the fina! designation of the attomey representative. In that regard, after you have
reached 2 decision regerding the attomey representative, please provide me with his or her
name and contact information.

If1 can provide you with any farther information, please do nothiesitate to contact me
and/or the U.S, Attomey and/or Jay Lefkowitz, Esq. on behalf of Epstein, Mr. Lefkowitz can
be reached at -Kirkland & Ellis LLP, Citigroup Center, 153 East 53™ Strest,
New York, New York 10022-4611, Thank you again for your assistznce with this matter.

Sincerely,

R. Alexander Acosta
United States Altomey

First Assistant United States Attorney

e ausa NN
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1S SELECTED

I.  Provide selected attorney with:
2. a copy of the relevant portion of the Non-Prosecution Agreement;
b, the names and contact information for the identified victims; and
c. a retainer agreement.

i, The retainer agreement will provide for the menthly billing of
fees at an hourly rate end monthly expenses.

ii, The billing statements will be sent to and paid by en attorney or
accountant not involved in the damages litigation, and will not
be made available to any person or firm involved inthe damagss

#i.  Billing statements will have privileged and work product information
redacted.

iv.  Disputes regarding fees will be referred to 2 Special Master (perhaps
the Special Master who selected the attomney).

2. The agents and I will contact the girls individually to inform them of the
resohrtion of the case, including the selection of an attorney to represent them,
if they so choose. 1 will provide them with the name and telephone mumber of
the attorney and also let thern know that the attorney will be contacting them.

3. Ths selected attorney will contact each victim and review with her the facts of
her cese and the options that she has, namely:

: selecting another &ttomey and hendling everything through that
attorney;

b. attempting to reach an agreement with Mr, Epstein for en amount of
damages pursuant to 18 U.S.C. § 2255;

e, filing suit seeking other stats end/or federal damages orrestitution; and

d. not seeking any money damages from Mr, Epstein.
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4,  If the specific victim selects option (3)(b), the selected attorney will contact
counsel for Mr. Epstein to negotiate a settlement amount and the terms of that
settlement. '

5,  Ifthe specific victim selects option (3)(b) and the parties are unable to reach
an agreemmnent regarding a settlement emount, then the victim can:

a. ask the selected attorney to file suit in the .8, District Court for the
Southern District of Flerldse, pursuent to 18 U.S.C. § 2235; or

b. file suit in state or federal court pursuing damages under eny state or
federal remedy.

6.  Ifths specific victim selects option (5)(a), the representation of the victim by
the salected attorney will continue using the seme monthly billing and payment
system contained in the retainer agreement,

7. If the spacified victim selects option (5)(b), Mr. Epstein will have no further
obligation to pay the attomney, except as ordered by the Court hearing the suit.
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EXHIBIT C

LETTER DATED SEPTEMBER 2, 2008 FROM EPSTEIN'S COUNSEL
TO ASSISTANT UNITED STATES ATTORNEY
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Jay P, Lafowiz, F.0, :
Tio Ot Weiriter 4
To Diracty: 440-2500 - [218) 4454800

e |

KIRKLAND & ELLIS LLP

AND APFILIATID PARTHERSHTS

 Chigroup Cervter

1568 Erat G8rd Btrast
Ny Yok, Naw York 10022-4811 ,
Facsiml:

@13

eliraiaggkirkland.com ' . s

Sep&mhcr 2, 2008

VIAFACSIMILE (561) 820-8777

United States Attorney's Office
Southern District of Florida

West Palm Beach, Florida 33401
| Re: Jeffrey Epstein

Dl

In response 0 your letter dated August 26, 2008, I am confirming thet Mr. Goldberger
should continus to be listed as the contact person in the dmended victim notification letters and

should receive the carbon copies of those letters as they are sent.

Also, we plan on speaking to Mr. Josefsberg this week to df.umnnprécaﬁuufqrp&y‘nzg
hia fess. 'We intend to comply fully with the agreement and Mr, Epstein will pay M. Josfsberg'a
usual and customary hourly rates for his work pursuant to the agreement facilitating settlements

oo Keren Atkinson, Chief, Northern Division _

- Jack Goldberger
Roy Black )
Chioago Hang Kang Lontdan Lioa Angehas Mundah Ban Franciaco Washington, D.C.
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UnNITED STATES DIsTRICTCOURT
Southern District of Florida
Case Number:

PODHURST ORSECK, P.A

Plaintiff
v.

JEFFREY EPSTEIN,
Drefendant

SUMMONS IN A CIVIL CASE

TO: Mame and addres of defendent)

JEFFREY EPSTEIN
358 El Brillo Way
Psim Beach, Fiorida

YOU ARE HEREBY SUMMONED and required to serve upon PLAINTIFE'S ATTORNEY (neme and sadress)

Pater Prietn, Esq.

PODHURST ORSECK, P A .

City National Bank Building - Suite 800
25 West Flagler Street

Miami, FL 33130

an answer to the complaint which is herewith served upon you, within 20 days after service of
this summons upon you, exclusive of the day of service. If you fail to do so, judgment by default will be taken against
vou for the relief demanded in the complaint. You must also file your answer with the Clerk of this Court within a
reasonablie period of time after service.

CLERE DATE

BY) DEFUTY CLERE

EFTA00207439



ngﬁr? EEJ

::gr%u-msa&,qss Document

| Bumimang in a Covil Case (Reverse)

1-2 Entered on FLSD Docket 05/17/2010 Page 2 of 2

HETURN OF SERVICE
Service of the Summons and Complaint was made by me ' DATE
KM O SERVER (FRINT) TITLE

Check one box below to indicate appropriote method of sevvice

0O Served personally upon the defendant. Place where served:

0  Left copies thereof at the defendant’s dwelling howse or usual place of abode with a person of suitable
age and discretion then residing therein.
Name of person with whom the summons and complaint were left:
O Returned unexecuted:
O  Other (specifi):
STATEMENT OF SERVICE FEES
TRAVEL SERVICES TOTAL §0.00

DECLARATION OF SERVER

| declare under penalty of perjury under the laws of the United States of America that the foregoing

information contained in the Return of

Executed on

Service and Statement of Service Fees 18 true and correct.

Dmie

Signarure of Server

Aubidress of 5erver

Al 1o wise may serve o samimons soe Rule 4 of the Federa| Rulbs of Civil Pecadue

EFTA00207440
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The 55 44 covil cover sheet pnd the information contained berein neither replace nor supplement the filimg and serace of pleadings or osher papers as required by law, exceptas provided
by bncal rules of eourt, This ferm, approved by the Judicinl Conforence of the United States in Scptember 1974, is rogusred fior thie wee of the etk of Court for the puposs of mitistng
fhe civil docket shoet, (SET INSTRUCTIONS OM THE REVERSE OF THE FORA ) m-mnm All Re-filed Cases Below,

I. (a) PLAINTIFFS
PODHURST ORSECK. ' A

DEFENDANTS
JEFFREY EPSTEIN

(b} Cownyof Rsidence of First Listed Plagnaff  Migmi-Dade County of Residence of Firmst Listed De fandani Palm Beach
{FXCEPT (M U5 PLAINTIFF CASER) 1% U S PLATNTIFF CASES OMLYS
(€} Aftomey's Fiom Name, Asdicss. sod Telepbone Wemher) KOTE: IM LAND CONDEMNATION {ASES. USE THE LOC A TION OF THE TRACT

LAKNDG [NYGLY D
Peter Prieto, Esg.

Podhurst Orseck, PLA,

25 W. Fiagler Street, Suite %00, Miam, Flonida 33

Atlamcys (1 Knows)

130 {30533 58-2800

() Cheek County Where Action Arse: O MIAMI DADE (0 MONEOE 0 BROWARD 0 FALM BEACH O MARTIN O 8T, LUCIE 0 INDIAN RIVER 0 OKEFCH{NEE
FIEGIHLANDE
1. BASIS OF JURISDICTION  (Pace o %" i Une Bina Disly) T, CITIZENSHIP OF PRINCIPAL PARTIES Fece oo %% w0 De Ses for Plabailt
(For DHversiny Cases Dnkvh and Ose Box for Defendas)
8 1 DA, Guversden 'h"‘-l % Fadgial Qusseen FTF DEF rrE mE I
Flzinsill ILLE. Goveremenl Bal & Fary) Cizen nf This Smee ' 1 O 1 lsgerpesied or Principat Plece a8 My
of Hurisess In This Siaie
M 2 LK dreversmend i | DriveTeimy CRiren of A noisse 5ints a z '}"I . I orputiied sad FRscipol Flacs ] i b 1
Eheie o e ) | . al Meilmens i Afeihod Sate
{incligmbd [P pihip of Pastts in item 157
Caigan of Sohjretof 8 In 3 Fardlps Mallos A ] a s
Fifeies 4 iy

iy (1l
s Uinp Bay ¢

[I NATURE OF SUIT riue e -5
CONTEADT

TURLS RFEITUBEPFEMALTY BANRERUPTCY GTHER STATUTES I
F1 100 |avesnes PERSOMNAL INJURY PERBOSAL INJURY |00 AL Agricubiars O 423 Apgheal W LISE 15K 0V e Siele Heuppatfinsme|
1 20 Marme T ¥idl Airplene 4 At Persenal Msjary - O &30 frher Food & Drup 423 Wihdrew el 0O 418 Antilres!
1 ER0 Milkes Ael T R L Adrpline Prodwe ked M elpingiloe 428 Daug Belaied Saixwis IW LR 15T O 420 Hanks sad Heaking
1 bad Wepotinkle Inshroment Laabiliny 0 3&5 Pesonal lagjury - al Propessy 20 UEC 58] 3 450 Commence
M isa Reconety ol Dweipayniees 3 320 Awnayfl, Libel & Producy Linbilky &30 Lwjins Laws un T 4H0 D poatsiion
& Eniforcemesi of Jedpmesi Slnmder 1 36 Askeddes Papsomsl |3 &40 B.R, & Trock 2 OHID Capyrighs O 470 Backereer Influenced amd
¥ Medicare Ak M w30 Federsl Tmploypens Injmy Frodwel 0 &50 Abvline Rega 1 3 Pabent Carrupl Orgasszalioe
M 132 Wecawery ol Delashed Lisbaliny Louakilwiy M aall Oy ppstienal A w4l Temlemark M ¥ onsemer Urnedi
Siuideas loass ¥ 341 Masine PERSONAL FROTERTY SaferydHeathy 0 290 CoblesSa TV
P mih Wateremd) 0 145 Maring Poadust A 30 Owser Frosd B0 _hiri ivihar O K10 Selactveg Rrimce
0 151 Regovery ol Dverpayimesl Iabliny A 571 Treth in Lemding LABGE SOCIAL SECURITY O RA0 Secunses Cominndnest
of Warernn®s Bénehas ¥ P30l Mamr Velslale A Ml Oler Pemshal A TI0 Fair Lokar Siesdnide 0 Es1 A 1 Ee Canhnnge
1 180 Siockholdens' Sous % 355 Metr Vehucle IFrugercy lamape At ¥ Rbd Blck Leng (9231 8 kTS Customes £ hallenge
A 1% Orher Ol Prrasdu Linhiiiny T 385 Froperiy Damage |0 720 LaborMpml. Belotoes | T H63 DRV OEITW W 4050530 12 USRC J418
M 184 Copsraed Product Liabilite ] 7Y 30 Usiler Femsinil PFruduet Liabilary O 730 Loberd pmi Reporting | 0 Hé4 5511 Tate XKW1 T B9 Diher Sestiary At
M 184 Fraschise Tnyery & Disciesure Act T OHAS RS (ANF(pt 5 k91 Agriceliual Acg
f REAL FHOFERT Y CIvEL JegGnTs - PRISUNER PETIVLONS | 740 Bailway Labvor Aol HNE 0O K92 Beowemio Sabilizaven He
A 718 Laed Londemnnlics 241 Vetiap 3 210 Metions s Vo |3 790 Oiker Lubor Lmiganas D &7 Yaxes (U5, Flontill O §93 Environmicisd Maleis
= 330 Pueeslosuns @42 Dmplayment Ronsnue 00 Pmpl. Rel, fee, Secwrity od [hdleodanip O AUE Bneegy Abloestisn Ae
A 230 Rent Lease & Ejectment 3 #43 Heasing' Hahias Corpus: e O 378 1IR3 Third Pty D 405 Freedem of lafsenseting fet
O el Tons io Lasd Mg Y ] RSO 1 30 Gemeral M USC TeD9
7 245 Ten Prodee Lisbidiy 7 444 Wellare Y A%% Death Pesahy O A Appesl ol Fee Delenmkosl s
M 290 Al Giher Aeal Progeny o ;-:-T'I‘I“?:::e.m,.-n.w'l-dl.lu-;. 19 20 Mandnines & Dmerf 1ii;l::lul::\lﬁulmn Vinder Egaal fooess i Sustier
_I-l-ﬁ Amer wiDuakliies do  pon oy It ks m 901 Habens Corpei-A ben
nher Delaines
OV 440 Ober Civil Rights S 5% Prswn Ccadiien |3 1‘;"_}:";‘"’ Immigrsiion "-"'-'_::al;l:':rl;"“"m uly af Siate
.. ORIGIN {PIace & X in Gine Hox nly) Tranelemed from ;'_F' '1'|r'” District
21 Origmul A 2 Hemoved fom (m) Ha-fiked. 0 4 Remswedor O 5 pciher districr O 6 Mulidiserics 7 7 ,.:1:1 fl‘:ﬂm':
Proceeding State Court (see VT below) Reopened {specifys Litigation Jucement

a) Re-filed Case O YES JNO b) Related Cases @ YES DINO
VI. RELATEDVRE-FILED

CASLE(S)

90 itnFrucljoss
sepcind pugel

JUDGE Eenpeth A. Marra DOCKET NUMBER See attached fist of cases

[Clie the U5, Livil Statule snder which you are filing and Wrile a Boct Statement of L suse (Do ool eiie jurisdictions] sintutes ueless
diversiry)

VII. CAUSE OF ACTION Breach of Contract to Recover Attorney's Fees and Costs. 28U S.C.§ 1320200 ) andt 1331,

LENGTH OF TRIAL ia days catimated (for both sides to ey eative cage)

VI REQUESTEDR IN 0 CHECK IF THIS 5 A CLASS ACTION DEMAND § CHECK YES oaly if demanded in complaint:
COMPLAINT: UNDER FRC.P. 23 JURY DEMAND: T Yes 7 No
ABOVE INFORMATION IS TRUE & CORRECT TO'  gignarune oF ATTORNEY OF RECORD DATE
THE BEST OF MY KNOWLEDGE _ . ¢
s/Peter Prieto Lay 17,2810
FOR OFFICE USE ONLY
AMOUNT RECEIFT ¢ IFF

EFTA00207441
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INSTRUCTIONS FOR ATTORNEYS COMPLETING CIVIL COVER SHEET FORM JS 44

Authority For Civil Cover Sheet

“The 15 44 civil cover sheel and the inlommalion contained herein neither replaces nor supplements the flings aml service of pleading or other papers as reguired
by law, excepl as provided by local rules of court. This form, approved by the Judicial Conference of the United States in September 1974, is required for the use
of the Clerk of Court for the purpose of initiating the civil docket sheet. Consequently, a civil cover sheet is submitied 1o the Clerk of Courd for each eivil complaint
filed. The attorney filing a case should complete the form as follows:

1. (a) Plaintiffs-Defendants. Enter names {{ast, first, middle initial) of plaiatilf and defendznt. [Fihe plaintift or defendant 1s a government agency, use only
the full name or standard abbrevistions, 11the plaintiff or defendant is an official within a povernment agency, identify first the agency and then the oficial, gving
both name and vtle.

{b} County of Restdence. For each civil case filed, except U.S_ plaintiff cases, enler the name of the county where the first listed plaintiff resides at the time
of Fling. In 11.5. plainti{T cases, enter the name of the county in which the first listed defendant resides at the time of filing. (NOTE: In fand condemnation cases,
the county of residence of the “defendant™ is the location of the wact of [and invelved )

{e) Atomeys. Enter the firm name, address, telephoné number, nnd altomey of record. IF there are several attorncys, list themn on an atacliment, noting
in this secuon “{see attachment)™.

(d) Choose one County where Action Arpse,

11. Jurisdiction. The basis of jurisdiction is set forth under Rule 8(n), F.R.C.P., which requires that jurisdictions be shown in plesdings. Plece un X" in one
of the hoxes. If there is more than one basis of jurisdiction, precedence is given in the otder shown below.

United States plaintiff. {1} Jurisdiction based on 28 U.5.C. 1345 and 1348, Suits by agencies and officers of the United States are included here.
United States defendant. {2) When the plaintill = suing the United States, its officers or agencies, place an X" in this box.

Federal question, (3) This refers to suits under 28 U.S.C. 1331, where jurisdiction arises under the Constitution of the United States, an amendment 1o the
Constitution, an act of Congress or a treaty of the United States. In cases where the ULS, is a party, the ULS. plainufl or defendant code takes precedence, and hox
I ar 2 should be marked.

Diversity of citizenship, (4) This refers to suits under 28 U.8.C. 1332, where parties are citizens of different states. When Box 4 is checked, the citizenship of the
different parties must be checked. (See Section I below: federal question aclions take precedence over diversity cases.)

1. Residence {citizenship) of Principal Partles. This section of the 15 44 is 10 be completed i diversity ol citizenship was indicated above, Mark thiy ssetion
for each prncipal party,

IV. Natwreof Suit. Place an X" in the appropriate box. I the nature of suil cannot be determined, be sure the cause of action, in Section Y1 below, is sullicient
b enabile the deputy clerk or the statistienl clerks in the Administrative Office to determine the nature of suit. 1 the cause fits more than one nature of suit, select
the most definitive.

I Origin. Place an “X" in one of the seven boxes.
Original Proceedings. {1) Cases which originiate in the United States District Courls.

Remaoved from State Coun. (2) Proceedings initinted in state courts may be removed to the district cowrts under Title 28 US.C., Section 441, When the pefition
for removal is granted, check this box

Refiled {3) Atlach copy of Order for Dismueasa] of Previouws cose. Also complole V9
Reinstated or Reopened. (4) Check this box for cases reinstated or reopened in the district court. Use the reopening date as the filing date.

Transferred from Another District. {5} For cases iransferred under Title 28 U.S.C. Section 1404{a). Do not use this for within distriet transfers or multidistrict
litigation transfers,

Multidistriet Litigation. (6) Check this box when a multidistrict case is transfirred into the district under authority of Tifle 28 11.5.C. Section 1407, When this box
iz checked, do not check (3) above.

Appeal to District Judge from Magistrate Judgment, (7} Check this box for an appeal from a magistrate judge’s decision.

¥1. RelatedrRefiled Cases. Thisscetion ofthe 15 44 is used to reference related pending cases or re-filed cozes. st the docket numbiers and the veresponding
judges pamme i such cases.

VIL.  Causeof Action. Keport the civil statute divectly related to the cause of action and give a brief deseription of the cause. Do not cite jurisdictional statutes
unless diversity. Example: LIS, Civil Statute: 47 USC 553 )
Bref Descripbon: Unaethorized reception of cable service

VIIL.  Requested in Complaint. Class Action. Plaze an “X" in this box if you are filing & class action under Rule 23, F.R.Cv P,
Demend. In this space enter the dollar amount (in thousends of dollars) being demanded or indicale other demand such as a preliminary injunction.

Jury Demand. Check the approprinte box to indicate whether or nol a jury is being demanded.

Davte and Attorney Signature. Date and sign the civill cover sheet,

EFTA00207442



